

UNIVERSITY of **CAMBRIDGE** ESOL Examinations

Cambridge English Proficiency

Certificate of Proficiency in English (CPE) CEFR Level C2

Specifications and Sample Papers for examinations from March 2013

Proof of exceptional English ability



Exam content and overview

Paper/timing	Test con	tent	Test focus
	Part 1	A modified cloze test containing eight gaps followed by eight multiple-choice questions.	Candidates are expected to be able to: demonstrate the ability to apply their knowledge and control of the language system by completing a number of tasks
	Part 2	A modified cloze test containing eight gaps.	at text and sentence level; demonstrate a variety of reading skills including understanding of specific
-	Part 3	A text containing eight gaps. Each gap corresponds to a word. The stems of the missing words are given beside the text and must be changed to form the missing word.	information, text organisation features, implication, tone and text structure.
READING AND JSE OF ENGLISH	Part 4	Six separate questions, each with a lead-in sentence and a gapped second sentence to be completed in three to eight words, one of which is a given 'key' word.	
	Part 5	A text followed by six 4-option multiple-choice questions.	
	Part 6	A text from which seven paragraphs have been removed and placed in jumbled order, together with an additional paragraph, after the text.	
	Part 7	A text or several short texts, preceded by 10 multiple-matching questions.	
2	Part 1	One compulsory question.	Candidates are expected to write an essay summarising and evaluating the key ideas contained in two texts of approximately 100 words each.
WRITING 1 hr 30 mins	Part 2	Candidates choose one task from a choice of five questions (including the set text options).	Candidates are expected to be able to write non- specialised text types such as an article, a letter, a report, a review or an essay.
	Part 1	Three short extracts from monologues or exchanges between interacting speakers. There are two multiple-choice questions for each extract.	Candidates are expected to be able to show understanding of feeling, attitude, detail, opinion, purpose, agreement, gist, course of action, inference, function, specific information, etc.
3 LISTENING	Part 2	A monologue with a sentence completion task which has nine items.	
Approx. 40 mins	Part 3	A text involving interacting speakers, with five multiple-choice questions.	
	Part 4	Five short themed monologues, with 10 multiple- matching questions.	
	Part 1	A conversation between the interlocutor and each candidate (spoken questions).	Candidates are expected to be able to respond to questions and to interact in conversational English,
4 speaking	Part 2	A two-way conversation between the candidates (visual and written stimuli, with spoken instructions).	using a range of functions in a variety of tasks.
16 mins	Part 3	An individual 'long turn' for each candidate, followed by a response from the second candidate (written stimuli with spoken instructions).	

Preface

This booklet contains specifications and sample papers for the revised *Cambridge English: Proficiency* examination, also known as *Certificate of Proficiency in English (CPE)*. The revised version of the exam will be introduced for the first time in March 2013.

Further information on the examination will be issued in the form of:

- regular update bulletins
- a comprehensive *Cambridge English: Proficiency Handbook for Teachers* containing an additional set of sample papers
- an extensive programme of seminars and conference presentations.

If you need any further copies of this booklet, please email ESOLHelpdesk@CambridgeESOL.org

Contents

Introduction	2
The purpose of the revision project	2
The process of the project	2
Key changes - at a glance	2
About Cambridge ESOL	2
The world's most valuable range of English qualifications	2
Key features of Cambridge English exams	3
Quality - at the heart of what we do	3
Cambridge English: Proficiency - an overview	3
Who is the exam for?	3
Recognition	3
The level of Cambridge English: Proficiency	3
Marks and results	3
Exam content and processing	4
Factors affecting the design of the examination	4
A thorough test of all areas of language ability	4
International English	4
Administrative information	4
Reading and Use of English	5
General description	5
Structure and tasks	5
Sample paper	6
Answer key	12

Writing	13
General description	13
Structure and tasks	13
Task types in the Writing paper	14
The two parts of the Writing paper	15
Sample paper	16
Sample responses	18
Examiners and marking	19
Assessment	19
Listening	20
General description	20
Structure and tasks	20
Sample paper	21
Sample script	24
Answer key	28
Speaking	29
General description	29
Structure and tasks	29
Sample paper	30
Examiners and marking	33
Assessment	33

Introduction

The *Cambridge English: Proficiency* examination was originally offered in 1913. Numerous updates, most recently in 2002, have allowed the examination to keep pace with changes in language teaching and testing.

This booklet gives information on the outcome of the revision of *Cambridge English: Proficiency.* Changes will be introduced from March 2013.

The purpose of the revision project

The purpose of the project was to revise *Cambridge English: Proficiency* in order to ensure that it continues to meet the needs of candidates, teachers, centres and other users in terms of content and length.

The aims were to ensure the updated examination:

- is suitable for use for higher education study purposes
- is suitable for use for career enhancement purposes
- feels fresh and modern and retains appropriate and specific testing focuses for each paper
- is thoroughly validated and reflects the most up-to-date methodological approach to communicative language testing
- is more user-friendly in terms of its length
- continues to set the standard for C2 level exams.

The outcome is as follows, and is the result of extensive research, consultation with users, and trialling of exam material.

The process of the project

The project has included the following main stages:

- Data collection, e.g. market information including survey questionnaires sent to teachers and Centre Exams Managers; information on candidates collected on Candidate Information Sheets.
- The development of examination specifications, including the development of the test construct, test content and the definition of the test focuses; the development, production, editing and trialling of draft task types and materials; and research into the validity and reliability of the material and assessment procedures.
- 3. The production of examination support materials, including public specifications, and training materials for writers of examination materials and examiners.

Throughout the project, Cambridge ESOL has gathered feedback on its proposals for the examination by holding consultation meetings with stakeholders. During trialling, teachers and students were asked to complete questionnaires on trial materials.

Key changes - at a glance

2

These are the key changes to the *Cambridge English: Proficiency* examination that will be introduced in March 2013.

 Cambridge English: Proficiency will have four papers instead of five. While the knowledge assessed in the current Use of English paper is assessed across all four papers in the new exam, many of the tasks have been retained in modified formats in the Reading and Use of English paper.

- The new Cambridge English: Proficiency exam will be shorter than the previous examination by approximately 2 hours. However, careful exam design means that Cambridge English: Proficiency still assesses at exactly the same high level, retains all of the language and skills coverage as the current exam, and introduces new tasks and testing focuses in each of the written papers.
- From 2013 candidates will be able to choose to take *Cambridge English: Proficiency* as either a paper-based or computer-based exam. This will offer candidates more choice about how they take their exam and introduce more exam dates.

About Cambridge ESOL

Cambridge English: Proficiency is developed by University of Cambridge ESOL Examinations (Cambridge ESOL), a not-for-profit department of the University of Cambridge.

Cambridge ESOL is one of three major exam boards which form the Cambridge Assessment Group (Cambridge Assessment). More than 8 million Cambridge Assessment exams are taken in over 150 countries around the world every year (correct as of January 2011).

The world's most valuable range of English qualifications

Cambridge ESOL offers the world's leading range of qualifications for learners and teachers of English. Over 3 million people take our exams each year in 130 countries.

Cambridge ESOL offers assessments across the full spectrum of language ability. We provide examinations for general communication and for academic and professional purposes (including specialist legal and financial English qualifications). All of our exams are aligned to the principles and approach of the Common European Framework of Reference for Languages (CEFR).



To find out more about Cambridge English exams and the CEFR, go to www.CambridgeESOL.org/CEFR

In addition to our own programmes of world-leading research, we work closely with professional bodies, industry professionals and governments to ensure that our exams remain fair and relevant to candidates of all backgrounds and to a wide range of stakeholders.

Key features of Cambridge English exams

Cambridge English exams:

- are based on realistic tasks and situations so that preparing for their exam gives learners real-life language skills
- accurately and consistently test all four language skills reading, writing, listening and speaking – as well as knowledge of language structure and its use
- encourage positive learning experiences, and seek to achieve a positive impact on teaching wherever possible
- are as fair as possible to all candidates, whatever their national, ethnic and linguistic background, gender or disability.

Quality - at the heart of what we do

Cambridge ESOL's commitment to providing exams of the highest possible quality is underpinned by an extensive programme of research and evaluation, and by continuous monitoring of the marking and grading of all Cambridge English exams. Of particular importance are the rigorous procedures used in the production and pretesting of question papers.

At the heart of all these processes are the systems and procedures that drive our search for excellence and continuous improvement. While these systems involve complex research and technology, the underlying philosophy is simple and is designed around five essential principles:

Validity - are our exams an authentic test of real-life English?

Reliability - do our exams measure consistently and fairly?

Impact – does our assessment have a positive effect on teaching and learning?

Practicality – does our assessment meet learners' needs within available resources?

Quality - how we plan, deliver and check that we provide excellence in all of these fields.

How we implement this approach across our organisation is explained in *Principles of Good Practice*, which can be downloaded free at www.CambridgeESOL.org/Principles

The ISO 9001:2008 standard

All systems and processes for designing, developing and delivering exams and assessment services are certified as meeting the internationally recognised ISO 9001:2008 standard for quality management.

Cambridge English: Proficiency – an overview

Cambridge English: Proficiency was originally introduced in 1913 and is a high-level qualification that is officially recognised by universities, employers and governments around the world. Based on extensive research, numerous updates over the years have allowed the exam to keep pace with changes in language teaching and testing and have ensured the exam remains reliable and relevant for candidates. A full history of the development of *Cambridge English: Proficiency* is detailed in *Continuity and Innovation: Revising the Cambridge Proficiency* *in English Examination 1913–2002*; Studies in Language Testing volume 15; Weir, C and Milanovic, M (eds); Cambridge University Press, 2003.

Who is the exam for?

Cambridge English: Proficiency is taken by candidates in over 70 countries and by more than 160 nationalities. Typically they are people seeking to achieve exceptional ability with English in order to:

- study demanding subjects at the highest levels, including postgraduate and PhD programmes
- actively engage with academic life by participating confidently in tutorials and seminars
- lead on complex and challenging research projects
- negotiate and persuade effectively at senior management level in international business settings.

Who recognises the exam?

- Cambridge English: Proficiency is accepted by universities, employers, governments and other organisations around the world as proof of the ability to use English to function at the highest levels of academic and professional life.
- It is recognised by the UK Border Agency as meeting the language requirements for Tier 1, 2 and 4 immigration, covering study and working in the UK*.
- The exam has been accredited by Ofqual, the statutory regulatory authority for external qualifications in England, and its counterparts in Wales and Northern Ireland, at Level 3 in the National Qualifications Framework, under the title 'Cambridge ESOL Level 3 Certificate in ESOL International'.
- The UK's Universities and Colleges Admissions Service (UCAS) awards candidates with *Cambridge English: Proficiency* up to 140 UCAS Tariff points* towards their application to UK universities and higher education institutions.
 www.CambridgeESOL.org/UCAS-points

* Accurate as of April 2011

For more information about recognition go to www.CambridgeESOL.org/recognition

What level is the exam?

Cambridge English: Proficiency is set at Level C2 – the highest level on the CEFR scale. C2 is required in demanding academic and professional settings, and achieving a certificate at this level is proof that a candidate has the linguistic competence to use English with a fluency and sophistication approaching that of a native speaker.

Marks and results

Cambridge English: Proficiency gives detailed, meaningful results. All candidates receive a **Statement of Results**. Candidates whose performance ranges between CEFR Levels C2 and C1 will also receive a **certificate**:

Statement of Results

The Statement of Results outlines:

- the candidate's result. This result is based on the total score gained by the candidate in all four papers.
- a graphical display of the candidate's performance in each paper

CAMBRIDGE ENGLISH: PROFICIENCY | EXAM CONTENT AND PROCESSING

(shown against the scale Exceptional – Good – Borderline – Weak).

a standardised score out of 100 which allows candidates to see exactly how they performed.

The Common I Framework of I		Cambridge English: Proficiency	
C Proficient	C2	Grade A Grade B Grade C	Proof of exceptional English ability
user	C1	Level C1	
B Independent	B2	Fail	
user	B1		
A	A2		
Basic user	A1		

Certificate

We have enhanced the way we report the results of our exams because we believe it is important to recognise candidates' achievements.

Certificate of Proficiency in English - Level C2

Grade A, B or C

If a candidate achieves grade A, B or C in their exam, they will receive the *Certificate of Proficiency in English* at Level C2.

Level C1 certificate

If a candidate's performance is below Level C2, but falls within Level C1, they will receive a Cambridge English certificate stating that they demonstrated ability at C1 level.

Exam content and processing

Cambridge English: Proficiency is a rigorous and thorough test of English at Level C2. It covers all four language skills – reading, writing, listening and speaking. In preparing for *Cambridge English: Proficiency*, candidates develop the skills they need to make practical use of the language in a variety of contexts and to communicate effectively in English.

Factors affecting the design of the examination

Analysis of *Cambridge English: Proficiency* candidate information data and market survey questionnaires showed consistent agreement on administrative aspects of the examination and how the revised examination could best reflect candidates' needs and interests. The updated examination has incorporated the insights provided by this information and aims to provide:

- coverage of candidates' needs and interests
- coverage of language abilities underlying these needs and interests in reading, control of language systems (grammar and vocabulary), writing, listening and speaking
- reliable assessment across a wide range of testing focuses
- positive educational impact
- ease of administration
- a more user-friendly experience for candidates.

A thorough test of all areas of language ability

The updated exam is comprised of four papers: Reading and Use of English, Writing, Listening and Speaking. It is shorter than the previous examination by approximately 2 hours.

Each of the four papers carries 25% of the total marks. Detailed information on each paper and sample papers follow later in this handbook, but the overall focus of each paper is as follows.

Reading and Use of English: 1 hour 30 minutes

Candidates need to be able to understand texts from publications such as fiction and non-fiction books, journals, newspapers and magazines.

Writing: 1 hour 30 minutes

Candidates have to show that they can produce two different pieces of writing: a compulsory one in Part 1, and one from a choice of five in Part 2.

Listening: 40 minutes

Candidates need to show they can understand the meaning of a range of spoken material, including conversations, lectures, seminars, broadcasts and talks.

Speaking: 16 minutes

Candidates take the Speaking test with another candidate or in a group of three, and are tested on their ability to take part in different types of interaction: with the examiner, with the other candidate and by themselves.

Each of these four test components provides a unique contribution to a profile of overall communicative language ability that defines what a candidate can do at this level.

International English

English is used in a wide range of international contexts. To reflect this, candidates' responses to tasks in Cambridge English exams are acceptable in all varieties and accents of English, provided they do not interfere with communication. Materials used feature a range of accents and texts sourced from English-speaking countries, including the UK, North America and Australia. US and other versions of spelling are accepted if used consistently.

Administrative information

As with the current *Cambridge English: Proficiency* examination, candidates must be entered through a recognised Cambridge ESOL centre. Find your nearest centre at **www.CambridgeESOL.org/centres**

Reading and Use of English

General description

FORMAT	The paper contains seven parts. For Parts 1 to 4, the test contains texts with accompanying grammar and vocabulary tasks, and separate items with a grammar and vocabulary focus. For Parts 5 to 7, the test contains a range of texts and accompanying reading comprehension tasks.
TIMING	1 hour 30 minutes
NO. OF PARTS	7
NO. OF QUESTIONS	53
TASK TYPES	Multiple-choice cloze, open cloze, word formation, key word transformation, multiple matching, gapped text, multiple choice.
WORD COUNT	2,900-3,400
MARKS	Parts 1-3 - each correct answer receives 1 mark; Part 4 - each correct answer receives up to 2 marks. For Parts 5-6, each correct answer receives 2 marks; for Part 7, each correct answer receives 1 mark.

Structure and tasks

PART 1

TASK TYPE	Multiple-choice cloze
FOCUS	The main focus is on vocabulary, e.g. idioms,
	collocations, fixed phrases, complementation,
	phrasal verbs, semantic precision.
FORMAT	A modified cloze containing eight gaps
	followed by eight 4-option multiple-choice
	items.
NO. OF QS	8
PART 2	
TASK TYPE	Open cloze
FOCUS	The main focus is on awareness and control of
	grammar with some focus on vocabulary.
FORMAT	A modified cloze test containing eight gaps.

Structure and tasks (cont.)

TASK TYPE	Word formation
FOCUS	The main focus is on vocabulary, in particular
	the use of affixation, internal changes and
	compounding in word formation.
FORMAT	A text containing eight gaps. Each gap
	corresponds to a word. The stems of the
	missing words are given beside the text and
	must be changed to form the missing word.
NO. OF QS	8
PART 4	
TASK TYPE	Key word transformations
FOCUS	The focus is on grammar, vocabulary and collocation.
FORMAT	Six separate items, each with a lead-in
ORMAT	sentence and a gapped second sentence to
	be completed in three to eight words, one of
	which is a given 'key' word.
NO. OF QS	6
	0
PART 5	
TASK TYPE	Multiple choice
FOCUS	Detail, opinion, attitude, tone, purpose, main
	idea, implication, text organisation features
	(exemplification, reference).
FORMAT	A text followed by 4-option multiple-choice
	questions.
NO. OF QS	6
PART 6	
TASK TYPE	Gapped text
FOCUS	Cohesion, coherence, text structure, global
	meaning.
FORMAT	A text from which paragraphs have been
	removed and placed in jumbled order after the
	text. Candidates must decide from where in
	the text the paragraphs have been removed.
NO. OF QS	7
	_ ·
PART 7	
TASK TYPE	Multiple matching
FOCUS	Detail, opinion, attitude, specific information.
FORMAT	A text or several short texts, preceded by
	multiple-matching questions. Candidates
	must match a prompt to elements in the text.
NO. OF QS	

READING AND USE OF ENGLISH

PART 1: Questions 1-8

	D plunge		D course D dropping off	D different D inclination	D holds				Turn over ►
	c sag		c track c making out	c mixed c custom	C counts				
	B slump		B roadB taking off	B diverseB direction	B belongs				
	1 A droop 2 A cantivated	< ∢	4 A path5 A turning out	6 A wide 7 A trend	8 A fits				
2 Part 1	For questions 1 – 8 , read the text below and decide which answer (A , B , C or D) best fits each gap. Mark your answers on the separate answer sheet . There is an example at the beginning (0).	0 A descriptive B imaginary C fabled D legendary	ADVENTURE TRAVEL	Wilfred Thesinger, the (0)D explorer once said, "We live our lives second-hand'. Sadly, his words are true for far too many of us, as we (1) in front of the television, (2) in 'reality' television, living our adventures through the words and pictures of others. But it does not have to be	that way – there are more opportunities than ever for taking a break from our increasingly sanitised lives and exploring not only some exotic (3) of the globe, but also our own abilities and	ambitions. The kind of first-hand experience whose loss Thesinger laments is still available for anyone willing to forsake the beaten (4) , and put their mind to (5) into the less explored regions of this (6)	The (7) in travel in recent years has been towards what is known as adventure travel. But adventure doesn't have to involve physical exertion; be it haggling over a souvenir in Peru, or getting	lost in the labyrinthine passages of a Moroccan souk, it all (8)	

e end of some of the at the beginning (0).		EFFECT ALERT	EXECUTE MAXIMUM	ORIENTATE	COMPARE	DESIGN	COMPANY	DESPAIR	Turn over ►
For questions 17 – 24, read the text below. Use the word given in capitals at the end of some of the lines to form a word that fits in the space in the same line. There is an example at the beginning (0). Write your answers IN CAPITAL LETTERS on the separate answer sheet. Example: 0 E F F C T I V E	POWER NAPS	Power napping is an (0). <u>EFFECTIVE</u> strategy. It involves taking an intense sleep which dramatically improves (17), making it especially useful for those with a demanding schedule such as mothers of babies or travelling	business (18) However, the conditions must be right and practice is required to (19) the effects.	To prevent (20) on awakening, power naps should last about 25 minutes. Falling asleep so quickly takes practice, but is in fact a habit which is	(21) easy to acquire. Initially, it is more important to relax for a while than actually fall asleep, and power-napping is not a good idea if you find it	difficult to wake up at the (22) time.	Finally, power-napping should not be confused with the kind of dozing that can (23) a sensation of overwhelming sleepiness during the day, which	simply represents the (24) experienced in the attempt to compensate for a poor sleep routine.	
e only PITAL		o. And mobile	killing	tes for at has	cy and				
A Part 2 Part 2 Part 2 For questions 9 - 16, read the text below and think of the word which best fits each space. Use only one word in each space. There is an example at the beginning (0). Write your answers IN CAPITAL LETTERS on the separate answer sheet. Example: 0 1 F	MOBILE COMMUNICATION	For many people, mobile email is a habit they couldn't give up even (0) they wanted to. And (9)	device means they can stay in touch with colleagues, thends and family, whether they re standing in a queue at the supermarket, downing a quick cup of coffee in (11) meetings or killing (12) before a flight.	It's fair to say that access to email while (13) the move has done much to whet appetites for other kinds of collaborative tools. What's (14), there's a whole new way of working that has	opened up in recent years and, (15) a result, there's a general expectation that efficiency and productivity don't necessarily take (16) within the four walls of an organisation's physical	offices.			

PARTS 2-3: Questions 9-24

CAMBRIDGE ENGLISH: PROFICIENCY SPECIFICATIONS AND SAMPLE PAPERS

READING AND USE OF ENGLISH

PART 4: Questions 25-30

9	7
Part 4	
For questions 25 – 30 , complete the second sentence so that it has a similar meaning to the first sentence using the word diven Do not chance the word diven . You must use between	29 The area was completely devoid of vegetation.
three and eight words, including the word given. Here is an example (0).	whatsoever
Example:	There the area.
0 Do you mind if I watch you while you paint?	
objection	30 When he was at his most successful, the President had enormous influence.
Do you	height
	At , the President had enormous influence.
o have any objection to my watching	
Write only the missing words on the separate answer sheet.	
25 It's impossible to predict how long it will take to do this job.	
telling	
There is	
26 Not many people buy that particular product these days.	
demand	
There	
27 For me, his skill as a negotiator was most impressive.	
how	
I was most	
28 Nobody expected Natalia to resign.	
came	
Natalia'severyone.	
	Turn over ►

READING AND USE OF ENGLISH

SAMPLE PAPER

PART 5: Questions 31-36



Part 6

9

There is one extra You are going to read an extract from an article. Seven paragraphs have been removed from the paragraph which you do not need to use. Mark your answers on the separate answer sheet. Choose from the paragraphs A – H the one which fits each gap (37 – 43). extract.

∢

The fog catcher's forest

A bare, dusty island where the rain never falls could soon be covered with trees. Fred Pearce reports.

When Spanish sailors landed in the Canary Islands century, they were amazed to discover an which they had somehow managed to sustain with tree, which stripped moisture out of passing fogs there is no doubt that the only thing stopping the Canaries from resembling the Sahara desert, just 70 kilometres to the east, is the moisture-rich fog that population with extensive agriculture virtually no rainfall. Legend has it that the Guanche people derived all their water from a single large and dripped enough water from its leaves to support a thousand people. However true the story may be, drifts in from the Atlantic Ocean. aboriginal in the 15th

CAMBRIDGE ENGLISH: PROFICIENCY SPECIFICATIONS AND SAMPLE PAPERS

37

Sometime in the last century, the last of the trees on high ground were cut down and the land began to This meant that across much of the schoolteacher who owns a home on the island, has a plan to reverse the trend. He wants to use artificial Ξ. north of the island, agriculture went into decline. Now David Riebold, a forestry scientist-turnedpromises to be the largest reforestation project harvesting to bring back the cloud forest, ever attempted using the technology out. what dry fog

42

38

foresters. Then he read about a successful research project in Chile which harvested the fogs enough water for a small town. Realising that Lanzarote's climate was very similar to Chile's, Riebold began to wonder whether fog harvesting years Riebold watched these failed efforts by Nets erected on a ridge facing the ocean provided regularly rolled in from the Atacama desert could be used to keep the saplings alive. enough local For that

39

years Riebold tried and failed to convince anyone to back his idea. It took the arrival of a new mayor to finally get his scheme approved. 'Proyecto David', On paper, fog harvesting looked like a solution to the island's reforestation problems, but convincing the authorities to give it a try wasn't easy. For many as the locals call it, got under way, and the town

eight modest fog-collecting devices on three of Lanzarote's mountains erected authorities

40

much larger devices which will discharge water into form the pilot phase of a full-scale reforestation of a pumped drip irrigation network designed to keep the saplings watered. Riebold hopes that this will This summer, having declared the initial experiment a success, the island council plans to install eight the mountains of northern Lanzarote

۵

4

anzarote government has targeted an area of about reforestation using fog collectors could stretch to 50 If the initial results scale up, a new cloud forest could restore the island to its former glory. The though Riebold believes that the potential area for 20 square kilometres in the north of the island square kilometres.

3ut the knock-on effects of reviving the forests go beyond restoring the wildlife. Eventually, the forests should capture enough moisture to help recharge the area's underground aquifers, many of which have remained empty since the forests disappeared. If this happens, wells down in the valleys could also refill, reducing the island's growing dependence on desalination, especially during the summer tourist season.

43

scale return to agriculture on the island remains to be seen, but the lessons learned from harvesting fog on the island's hilltops may be adapted for people living not far away, and with a greater need to see their landscape green and watered. If Lanzarote can catch moisture from the air and convert it to forests perhaps its famine-prone Whether or not fog harvesting will prompt a largeneighbours in West Africa could do the same. farmland, then pur

Turn over Electron

- Canaries. ш ш could be managed in one of two ways, he says. Either should be enough to support one seedling, and Riebold has found that on some sites, a square metre of net catches an average of two litres of water each day. One site averaged five litres a the hilltops could be covered with nets to grow new forests all at the same time, or this could be done in stages with a smaller number of nets being moved around to reforest each area in turn. After perhaps two years of water from the fog collectors, saplings would be tall The results look promising. A litre a day enough to collect the fog water themselves. ambitious scheme more This
- collecting areas lower down. Once the island's Centuries ago, the island's inhabitants carved into These drained into main source of water, they could be brought pack to life by reinstating the cloud forest. and mountainside aquifers. the tunnels up underground ပ

lay even at the hottest time of year.

G

degree of forest cover, but one, Lanzarote, is the trade winds and quenched an otherwise dry region. More recently, though, much of the farmland. Most of the islands still have some In times gone by, all seven of the islands had rich cloud forests that trapped moisture from islands' forest has been lost - removed for firewood, construction and to make way for all but bare. ۵

Marciano Acuna, the local town councillor in charge of the environment, says he hopes the the whole ecology of the region. Once the trees and a long-lost forest ecosystem will have a the trees will trigger a more widespread greening of northern Lanzarote and have an impact on are back, the quality of the soil will improve, chance to return, providing habitat for species long since confined to other islands in

- force mountain is too more arrely happen at ground level, so the fog rarely house at ground. 'That's why the saplings touches the ground. 'They mever got tall arrely more the mountain the more the mountain the more the mountain the more the mountain the more the m The s to Even in the hottest months, clouds form over the mountains of northern Lanzarote. As the trade winds blow over the island the mountains force moisture-rich vapour into droplets. moisture on their leaves.'
 - of farmland. This has made agriculture increasingly difficult and, combined with the rise of tourism as a source of revenue, has turned it into a weekend occupation at best for water expensive, and there are tight restrictions on the irrigation as Farmers would certainly benefit, Lanzarote has become very many residents. н.
- been , me newly planted trees dried out leaving the hilltops littered with The bare hills in this region have been of increasing concern to the island's authorities. Despite numerous attempts in the past decade, unsuccessful. With limited water supplies on the island, the newly planted trees dried replanting schemes have so far hundreds of dead saplings. and died, all т

7

PART 6: Questions 37-43

You are going to read an extract from a book on photography. For questions 44 – 53, choose from the sections (A – E). The sections may be chosen more than once.

Mark your answers on the separate answer sheet

In which section are the following mentioned?	
the possibility that photography can directly influence events in the world	44
the possibility that the photographic image has become redundant	45
images being interpreted in a similar way by different societies	46
a commonly held view about the relationship between what is visible and how it is interpreted	47
the contrasts of scale that can be represented in photography	48
the possibility that the techniques employed in photography today have taken the medium back to where it started	
the ability of photography to provide images that will exist for a long time	50
uncertainty as to whether the main purpose of photography is to inform or to entertain	51
the potential of photography to epitomise the human condition	52
the view that photography was the greatest achievement in the history of visual images	53

A historical background Photography

2

least to ask to what extent the photographic image Because of the camera's perceived realism in its it was assumed that all peoples would 'naturally' be able to understand photographs. This gave rise to the question of whether photography constituted a universal language'. For example, a photograph of the heavens, whether it showed the sun and moon in any part of the world. In the face of the rapid increase in global communications, we do need at regarded as a machine that could provide a fixed image. And this image was considered to be a very or the constellations, would immediately be understood close approximation to that which we actually see. can penetrate through cultural differences perception, ability to replicate visual understanding.

Ξ.

role of photography in society that have aimed to educational function or if it operates primarily as a much There are other questions that arise concerning the determine whether the camera operates as a mute passive recorder of what is happening or whether it possesses the voice and power to instigate social change. We may further speculate whether the that have a truly source of amusement. In provoking such issues, the photographic debate reflects polarised arguments characterised images have traditionally intellectual thought. provides camera that

image, culminating in the global primacy of television. For photography, the new prospects and uncertainties posed by digital storage and manipulation, and the transmission of images via the internet present new challenges. It has even been suggested that we now where technological and cultural change have devalued photography to such an extent that events have taken us beyond the photograph's use and value as a medium of communication. Furthermore, perhaps we should be asking if the advent of digital imagery from painting, has turned full circle and has now returned last 170 years have witnessed an ever photography, initially born visual 'post-photographic era' to emulating painting - its progenitor the of influence inhabit the means that increasing The ۲

READING AND USE OF ENGLISH

SAMPLE PAPER

11

recording of time and space, thus allowing human vision to be able to view the fleeting moment or to visualise both the vast and the minuscule. It has brought us images from remote areas of the world, distant parts of the solar system, as well as the social complexities and crises of modern life. Over the past one and a half centuries, photography has been used to record all aspects of human life and activity. During this relatively short history, the of the exact purposes of the early cave paintings, pictorial images seem to be inextricably linked to the Indeed, the photographic medium has provided one of the most important and influential means of Nonetheless, the recording of events by means of the visual image has a much longer history. The 35,000 years ago and, although we cannot be sure being alive. earliest creations of pictorial recording go as far back as the Upper Palaeolithic period of about medium has expanded its capabilities in essence of our capturing the

m

human culture as we understand it.

each other throughout history. The popular notion that 'seeing is believing' had always afforded of accuracy (or otherwise) of visual images, as well as from the trajectories, counter-influencing special status to the visual image. So when the immense. Not only did it hold out the promise of providing a record of vision, but it had the capacity their status in society. Ideas and debates concerning political, pursued the social and cultural impact was Throughout the history of visual representation, questions have been raised concerning the supposed how we see the world and the status of its pictorial time of Ancient Greece to the present-day technical revolution of the new media communications. form philosophical and psychological issues central have in the to make such representation enduring. representation been technology was invented, have representations interdependent Vision and photography,

photography appeared to offer the promise of the mid-nineteenth century, the invention of 'automatically' providing an accurate visual record. It was seen not only as the culmination of visual representation but, quite simply, the camera was Ц U

READING AND USE OF ENGLISH

.

Sample paper answer key

Q	Part One
1	В
2	С
3	A
4	С
5	В
6	В
7	А
8	С

Q	Part Two
9	why
10	After
11	between
12	time
13	on
14	more
15	as
16	place

Q	Part Three
17	alertness
18	executives
19	maximise/maximize
20	disorientation
21	comparatively
22	designated
23	accompany
24	desperation

Q Part Four

no (way/chance of) telling how long this/the job/work

26 is | (very) little demand for OR is not/isn't | a lot of/ much (of a) demand for

27 impressed to see/by/with/ at | (just) how skilled/ skilful/skillful a

28	resignation/resigning/				
decision to resign cam					
as a (total/complete					
	surprise/shock to				

29 was no/was not any vegetation | whatsoever in OR was nothing | whatsoever growing in

30 the height of | his success

Q	Part Five			
31	С			
32	С			
33	D			
34	В			
35	A			
36	С			

Q	Part Six
37	D
38	Н
39	F
40	В
41	А
42	E
43	G

Q	Part Seven
44	D
45	E
46	С
47	В
48	A
49	E
50	В
51	D
52	A
53	С

Writing

General description

FORMAT	The paper contains two parts.		
TIMING	1 hour 30 minutes		
NO. OF PARTS	2		
NO. OF QUESTIONS	Candidates are required to complete two tasks: a compulsory task in Part 1 and one task from a choice of five in Part 2.		
TASK TYPES	A range from the following: essay; article; report; letter; review.		
MARKS	Each question on this paper carries equal marks.		

Structure and tasks

TASK TYPE Writing an essay with a discursive focus.					
AND FOCUS					
FORMAT	Candidates are required to write an essay summarising and evaluating the key ideas contained in two texts of approximately 100 words each. The texts may contain complementary or contrasting opinions, and may be extracts from newspapers, books, magazines, online source material, or could be based on quotations made by speakers during a discussion.				
LENGTH	240-280 words				
PART 2					
TASK TYPE AND FOCUS	Writing one from a number of possible text types based on:				
	 a contextualised writing task 				
	• a question related to one of two set texts.				
FORMAT	Candidates have a choice of task. In questions 2–4, the tasks provide candidates with a clear context, topic, purpose and target reader for their writing. Question 5 consists of a choice between two tasks based on the set reading				
	texts. The output text types are:				
	texts. The output text types are:				
	texts. The output text types are: • essay				
	texts. The output text types are: • essay • article				
	texts. The output text types are: • essay • article • letter				

Task types in the Writing paper

The different task types are intended to provide frameworks for candidates so that they can put together and develop their ideas on a topic with a purpose for writing and a target reader in mind. These indications of readership and purpose are not comprehensive, but are intended to provide some guidelines to the different task types.

AN ESSAY is usually written for a teacher. It should be well organised, with an introduction, clear development and an appropriate conclusion. The compulsory Part 1 essay question will involve reading two short input texts on a particular topic and summarising and evaluating the key points from these texts in the context of a coherent essay on the topic, including the candidate's own views.

The set text essay questions specify what particular aspect of the set text (development of character or significance of events) should form the content of the essay.

AN ARTICLE is written on a particular theme in a style which makes it suitable for publication in an English-language newspaper, magazine or newsletter. The question identifies the topic for the article, and the type of publication mentioned gives the candidate guidance as to the appropriate register to be used – for example how academic or lively the article should be. The purpose of an article is to convey information; it may contain some description and/or narrative, and candidates should bear in mind the need to engage the interest of their readers.

A LETTER is written in response to the situation outlined in the question. Letters in the *Cambridge English: Proficiency* Writing paper will require a response which is consistently appropriate for the specified target reader, and candidates can expect to be asked to write letters to, for example, the editor of a newspaper or magazine, to the director of an international company, or to a school or college principal. A letter to a newspaper or magazine may well include a narrative element which details personal experience; other letters may be more concerned with giving factual information.

A REPORT is written for a specified audience. This may be a superior, for example, a boss at work, or members of a peer group, colleagues or fellow class members. The question identifies the subject of the report and specifies the areas to be covered. The content of a report is mainly factual and draws on the prompt material, but there will be scope for candidates to make use of their own ideas and experience.

A REVIEW may be about a book, magazine, film, play, or concert, but it may also be about, for example, a restaurant, hotel, or perhaps an exhibition. The target reader is specified in the question, so the candidate knows not only what register is appropriate, but also has an idea about the kind of information to include. A review does not merely require a general description of, for example, an event or publication, but it specifies the particular aspects to be considered. For example, the review may employ narrative, as well as descriptive and evaluative language, and a range of vocabulary relating, for example, to literature and the media such as cinema or TV.

SET TEXT questions may be articles, essays, letters, reports or reviews.

For all task types, questions are constructed to enable candidates to display their English language proficiency at CEFR C2 level; candidates should take special care to read every part of each question, and not to omit any required development of the topic.

The two parts of the Writing paper

PART 1

The rubric will read:

Read the two texts below.

Write an essay summarising and evaluating the key points from both texts. Use your own words throughout as far as possible, and include your own ideas in your answers.

Write your answer in 240-280 words.

There will be two input texts on the same topic, of about 100 words each, written up to CEFR C1 in level. Each text will have two clear main points. The texts may present opposing or complementary views. Candidates must integrate a summary of these four points and their own views on the topic in a coherent essay. The word range is a guide; the task can be accomplished well within this range but candidates will not be penalised for exceeding the upper limit. See the following pages for a sample question and appropriate responses taken from global trialling sessions, which illustrate good performance. Further examples, illustrating a range of candidate performances, will be included in the *Cambridge English: Proficiency Handbook for Teachers*, available in 2012.

PART 2

There is little change to the Part 2 questions but the word range will be reduced to 280-320, in line with the reduced timing of the test. Tasks will be written with this new word range in mind. Again, the word range is a guide; the task can be accomplished well within this range but candidates will not be penalised for exceeding the upper limit. The question types will be familiar to candidates preparing for the current *Cambridge English: Proficiency* Writing test. No sample answers are included in this document.

SET TEXTS QUESTIONS

As in the current test, Questions 5a and 5b will be based on two optional set texts which teachers can prepare with candidates in advance. At least one of these set texts will also have a film version, and candidates may prepare for Question 5a or 5b by studying the film version as well as or instead of the written text. In the accompanying sample paper the set texts vary, as questions on past set texts were available for selection.

PART 1: Question 1

	Part 1

2

Read the two texts below.

Write an essay summarising and evaluating the key points from both texts. Use your own words throughout as far as possible, and include your own ideas in your answers.

Write your answer in 240 – 280 words.

The Excitement of Advertising

Outdoor advertising has to attract, engage and persuade potential customers; it is the most important way of grabbing customers' attention and outdoor media continue to undergo a transformation. At the core of this transformation is the digital screen media, which encompass everything from giant screens to digital billboards. The technology is cheap and advertising agencies rave about the creative possibilities for advertisements which entertain, amuse, inform, make the environment brighter and enliven the world we live in.

Advertising: an undesirable business

Once upon a time outdoor advertising was straightforward. Posters were stuck up chose to ignore it. These people now regard digital advertising as a form of They feel that any advertising which targets children or vulnerable adults is a this kind of advertising to be fairly dull, a harmless blot on the landscape and on anything from a bus shelter to a motorway hoarding. Many people considered unwanted, creeping commercialisation: it attracts a buzz simply because it is new. dubious practice at the best of times, and digital advertising is, moreover, wasteful, damaging to the environment and completely unnecessary.

Write your essay

Turn over 🕨

Please write within the grey lines			
r			
Question 1			

WRITING

		W	RITING		SAMPLE PAPER
				PA	RT 2: Questions 2-5
7 Question Please write within the grey lines					Turn over
 6 Part 2 Part 2 Write an answer to one of the questions 2 - 5 in this part. Write your answer in 280 - 320 words in an appropriate style on pages 7 and 8. Put the question number in the box at the top of page 7. 2 A travel magazine has asked readers to send in articles on their favourtie public building, a from hall or a mission for example 7 on decide to write an article in which you decide a from the decide of the word decide to write an article in which you decide a from the decide	 a museum, nor example: you decore to write an ancore in writer you describe your favourite public building, explain why it is your favourite building and assess its significance for the wider community. Write your article. 3 You belong to an English-language reading group which recently read a book in cartoon format. You have agreed to write a review of the book for the group's website. In your review you should give your opinion of the cartoon format used for the book and say whether you think cartoons are a good way of felling a story, in general. 	Write your review. A popular English-language magazine has invited readers to send in letters sharing their recent experience of making an important decision. You decide to send in a letter in which you briefly describe the situation and explain the reasons why you took an important decision, and assess what the consequences of that decision might be in the future.	 Write your letter. You do not need to write any postal addresses. Write an answer to one of the following two questions based on one of the titles below. Write 5(a) or 5(b) at the beginning of your answer. (a) Tracy Chevalier: <i>Girl With A Pearl Earting</i> A literary magazine has asked readers to send in articles on 'Creating Atmosphere in Novels'. You decide to write an article on <i>Girl With A Pearl Earting</i> in which you describe the atmosphere of secrecy and fear which Griet experienced in the Vermeer following characters added to her feelings of anxiety: Cornelia, Catharina, Maria Thins and van Ruijten. 	 Write your article. (b) Tobias Hill: <i>The Cryptographer</i> You belong to a book club which has asked its members to write reports on the theme of trust in a novel of their choice. You decide to write a report recommending <i>The Cryptographer</i>, describing the part trust plays in the development of the story and assessing how important trust is to at least two characters in the novel. 	Write your report.

17

SAMPLE RESPONSES

WRITING

Part 1 sample responses

Candidate A

The two texts contrast the pros and cons of outdoor advertising, in particular in its latest digital form. Text 1 claims that outdoor advertising, like any advertising, is designed to appeal to potential customers, even creating in them a need for which it promises immediate satisfaction. In this respect, outdoor advertising is the most effective type and digitalisation considerably broadens the ways in which advertising professionals can reach and hence manipulate customers. Moreover it is cheap.

While outdoor advertising undoubtedly has an alluring power for customers, I seriously doubt its importance and overall impact. At least from the point of view of a European citizen, everyday exposure to outdoor advertising, digital or not, appears to be minimal. And the cheapness of digital media has to be offset against the continuous need for power to run these media, a fact which renders the term 'cheap' short-sighted and unconvincing.

Text 2 argues that traditional, paper-based outdoor advertising was unobtrusive and, overall, unimportant. Digital advertising, however, is seen as intrusive, its attractiveness simply boiling down to it being a novelty. People sharing these opinions regard advertising practices, particularly those focusing on the young and those in need of help, as deplorable, especially when it damages the environment at the same time.

I agree with the statements in text 2 as far as the environmental damage and advertising practices in general are concerned. However, those practices are not solely dependent on the medium they use. Paper-based outdoor advertising can be just as unwanted and creepingly commercialising as the digital counterpart. The fundamental question is: 'Do we want to be seduced and manipulated in such a way at all?' If people answer 'yes', I assume that digital outdoor advertising is just another step that will be followed by yet more intrusive ones.

Candidate B

Advertisements surround us in our everyday lives. Our routine is encircled by huge digital screens and posters stuck up in anything solid there can be found, each time advertising something different, targeting a different social group. But what do people believe about this situation?

According to the first passage, the vast majority of people consider advertising as an amusing, entertaining way for shops to attract more and more customers who are willing to spend their money on the advertised product, no matter if it is of no significant use to them, but only because the advertisement was extremely appealing and catchy, grabbing their attention. New technology is the main factor responsible for such a behaviour though, as digital advertisements cause astonishment and surprise to people who have not experienced such a development before. Personally, I believe that this way of advertising wakes the creative side of one's mind and appeals to people of all ages.

In contrast to the above, the second text supports that a number of people consider advertisements, either digital or through posters, an unwanted means to forward one's products to potential customers. In addition, their firm belief is that digital advertisements that refer to social groups such as children, who have not yet developed their understanding of the world, and vulnerable adults such as old people, provide a form of commercialisation which rather harms the envirinment than offers anything useful. I partly agree with the last point of the writer about vulnerable social groups, but as already mentioned, I am in favour of advertisements no matter in what form they are, since they can also form a really special way to communicate and get messages across easily.

To conclude, advertising is something that surrounded our past, surrounds our present and will surround our future.

Examiners and marking

Writing Examiners (WEs) undergo a rigorous process of training and certification before they are invited to mark. Once accepted, they are supervised by Team Leaders (TLs) who are in turn led by a Principal Examiner (PE), who guides and monitors the marking process.

WEs mark candidate responses in a secure online marking environment. The software randomly allocates candidate responses to ensure that individual examiners do not receive a concentration of good or weak responses, or of any one language group. The software also allows for examiners' marking to be monitored for quality and consistency. During the marking period, the PE and TLs are able to view their team's progress and to offer support and advice, as required.

Assessment

Examiners mark tasks using Assessment Scales that were developed with explicit reference to the Common European Framework of Reference for Languages (CEFR). The scales consist of four subscales: Content, Communicative Achievement, Organisation, and Language. The subscale Content is common to all levels, whereas discrete level-bound descriptors are provided for each of the CEFR levels for Communicative Achievement, Organisation, and Language.

Content focuses on how well the candidate has fulfilled the task, in other words if they have done what they were asked to do.

Communicative Achievement focuses on how appropriate the writing is for the task and whether the candidate has used the appropriate register.

Organisation focuses on the way the candidate puts together the piece of writing, in other words if it is logical and ordered.

Language focuses on vocabulary and grammar. This includes the range of language as well as how accurate it is.

Responses are marked on each subscale from 0 to 5.

When marking the tasks, examiners take into account length of responses and varieties of English:

- Guidelines on length are provided for each task; responses which are too short may not have an adequate range of language and may not provide all the information that is required, while responses which are too long may contain irrelevant content and have a negative effect on the reader. These may affect candidates' marks on the relevant subscales
- Candidates are expected to use a particular variety of English with some degree of consistency in areas such as spelling, and not for example switch from using a British spelling of a word to an American spelling of the same word.

Listening

General description

FORMAT	The paper contains four parts. Each part contains a recorded text or texts and corresponding comprehension tasks. Each part is heard twice.
TIMING	Approximately 40 minutes
NO. OF PARTS	4
NO. OF QUESTIONS	30
TASK TYPES	Multiple choice, sentence completion, multiple matching.
TEXT TYPES	<i>Monologues</i> : lectures, talks, speeches, anecdotes, radio broadcasts, etc.
	Interacting speakers: interviews, discussions, conversations, etc.
ANSWER FORMAT	Candidates are advised to write their answers in the spaces provided on the question paper while listening. There will be 5 minutes at the end of the test to copy the answers onto a separate answer sheet.
	Candidates indicate their answers by shading the correct lozenges or writing the required word or words in a box on the answer sheet.
RECORDING INFORMATION	The instructions for each task are given in the question paper, and are also heard on the recording. These instructions include the announcement of pauses of specified lengths, during which candidates can familiarise themselves with the task and, for some items, predict some of the things they are likely to hear.
	A variety of voices, styles of delivery and accents will be heard in each Listening test to reflect the various contexts presented in the recordings, as appropriate to the international contexts of the test takers.

Structure and tasks

TASK TYPE	Multiple choice
FOCUS	The focus is on identifying speaker feeling,
	attitude, opinion, purpose; agreement between
	speakers; course of action; gist; and detail.
FORMAT	Three short, unrelated texts lasting
	approximately 1 minute each, consisting of
	either monologues or exchanges between
	interacting speakers. There are two multiple-
	choice questions on each extract.
NO. OF QS	6
PART 2	
TASK TYPE	Sentence completion
FOCUS	The focus is on identifying specific information
	and stated opinion.
FORMAT	A monologue (which may be introduced by
	a presenter) lasting 3-4 minutes. Candidates
	are required to complete the sentence with
	information heard on the recording.
NO. OF QS	9
PART 3	
TASK TYPE	Multiple choice
	Multiple choice The focus is on identifying attitude and
ΤΑՏΚ ΤΥΡΕ	
ΤΑՏΚ ΤΥΡΕ	The focus is on identifying attitude and
TASK TYPE FOCUS	The focus is on identifying attitude and opinion; gist, detail and inference.
TASK TYPE FOCUS	The focus is on identifying attitude and opinion; gist, detail and inference. An interview or a conversation between two
TASK TYPE FOCUS	The focus is on identifying attitude and opinion; gist, detail and inference. An interview or a conversation between two or more speakers of approximately 4 minutes.
TASK TYPE FOCUS	The focus is on identifying attitude and opinion; gist, detail and inference. An interview or a conversation between two or more speakers of approximately 4 minutes. There are five 4-option multiple-choice
TASK TYPE FOCUS FORMAT	The focus is on identifying attitude and opinion; gist, detail and inference. An interview or a conversation between two or more speakers of approximately 4 minutes. There are five 4-option multiple-choice questions.
TASK TYPE FOCUS FORMAT NO. OF QS	The focus is on identifying attitude and opinion; gist, detail and inference. An interview or a conversation between two or more speakers of approximately 4 minutes. There are five 4-option multiple-choice questions.
TASK TYPE FOCUS FORMAT NO. OF QS PART 4	The focus is on identifying attitude and opinion; gist, detail and inference. An interview or a conversation between two or more speakers of approximately 4 minutes. There are five 4-option multiple-choice questions. 5
TASK TYPE FOCUS FORMAT NO. OF QS PART 4 TASK TYPE	The focus is on identifying attitude and opinion; gist, detail and inference. An interview or a conversation between two or more speakers of approximately 4 minutes. There are five 4-option multiple-choice questions. 5 Multiple matching
TASK TYPE FOCUS FORMAT NO. OF QS PART 4 TASK TYPE	The focus is on identifying attitude and opinion; gist, detail and inference. An interview or a conversation between two or more speakers of approximately 4 minutes. There are five 4-option multiple-choice questions. 5 Multiple matching The focus is on identifying gist; attitude; main
TASK TYPE FOCUS FORMAT NO. OF QS PART 4 TASK TYPE FOCUS	The focus is on identifying attitude and opinion; gist, detail and inference. An interview or a conversation between two or more speakers of approximately 4 minutes. There are five 4-option multiple-choice questions. 5 Multiple matching The focus is on identifying gist; attitude; main points; and interpreting context.
TASK TYPE FOCUS FORMAT NO. OF QS PART 4 TASK TYPE FOCUS	The focus is on identifying attitude and opinion; gist, detail and inference. An interview or a conversation between two or more speakers of approximately 4 minutes. There are five 4-option multiple-choice questions. 5 Multiple matching The focus is on identifying gist; attitude; main points; and interpreting context. Five short, themed monologues of
TASK TYPE FOCUS FORMAT NO. OF QS PART 4 TASK TYPE FOCUS	The focus is on identifying attitude and opinion; gist, detail and inference. An interview or a conversation between two or more speakers of approximately 4 minutes. There are five 4-option multiple-choice questions. 5 Multiple matching The focus is on identifying gist; attitude; main points; and interpreting context. Five short, themed monologues of approximately 30 seconds each. There are two tasks. Each task contains five questions and
TASK TYPE FOCUS FORMAT NO. OF QS PART 4 TASK TYPE FOCUS	The focus is on identifying attitude and opinion; gist, detail and inference. An interview or a conversation between two or more speakers of approximately 4 minutes. There are five 4-option multiple-choice questions. 5 Multiple matching The focus is on identifying gist; attitude; main points; and interpreting context. Five short, themed monologues of approximately 30 seconds each. There are two

	LISTENING	SAMPLE PAPER PART 1: Questions 1–6
2 Extract Three You hear a woman talking on the radio about her favourite piece of music. 5 How does the speaker say she feels when listening to her favourite piece of music?	 A engrossed B nostalgic C inspired A doubt the level of fits popularity. B disregard the composer's skills. C underrate it for its wide appeal. 	
1 Part 1 You will hear three different extracts. For questions 1 – 6, choose the answer (A, B or C) which fits best according to what you hear. There are two questions for each extract.	Extract One You hear a man talking about a new project being launched in a group of small Atlantic islands. 1 What is the main objective of the project? A to raise environmental awareness B to encourage tourism in the islands C to follow the movements of tides 2 What is the speaker's opinion of the new project? A The idea is over-ambitious. B The experiment is unscientific.	 Extract Two You hear part of an interview with an art critic, in which an exhibition featuring the latest work of photographer Tim Fitzgerald is discussed. What is the art critic's opinion of Fitzgerald's latest work? A It demonstrates his lack of artistic range. B It compares favourably with his previous work. C It shows his poor understanding of relationships. 4 The art critic says that Fitzgerald's pictures in the current show A are unsultable for rounding off the exhibition. B do not manage to engage the visitor's interest. C lack artistic originality.

CAMBRIDGE ENGLISH: PROFICIENCY SPECIFICATIONS AND SAMPLE PAPERS 21

LISTENING

PARTS 2-3: Questions 7-20

 4 Part 3 You will hear a discussion in which two marine biologists, Gina Kelso and Thomas Lundman, talk about an award-winning television film they made about wildlife in Antarctica. For questions 16 - 20, choose the answer (A, B, C or D) which fits best according to what you hear. 	 16 Gina's interest in marine biology dates from A her earliest recollections of life in Africa. B one memorable experience in childhood. C the years she spent studying in England. D a postgraduate research project she led. 	e	 D required them to do background research. 18 How did Thomas feel when he was asked to produce the programmes about Antarctica? A disappointed not to be presenting the series B surprised that people thought he was suitable C uncertain how well he would get on with the team D worried about having to spend the winter there 	 When they were in Antarctica, they would have appreciated a a less demanding work schedule. more time to study certain animals. c a close friend to share their feelings with. D a chance to share their work with colleagues. 	 20 What was most impressive about the whales they filmed? A the unusual sounds the whales made B the number of whales feeding in a small bay C how long the whales stayed feeding in one area D how well the whales co-operated with each other
3 Part 2 You will hear a nutritionist talking about the production and uses of mastic, a spice that is found in the Mediterranean area. For questions 7 – 15 , complete the sentences with a word or short phrase.	Mastic is collected from a tree which looks like a smaller form of the to be the tree.	are employed to remove im	Crystais or mastic nave been referred to as the control of the sale of mastic crystals is handled by a second seco	When mastic is added to 13 it slows down the melting process. Flavoured drinks are made in 14 which have had mastic burned under them.	Some people believe that mastic can help in the treatment of health problems, especially some

LISTENING

PART 4: Questions 21-30

You will hear five short extracts in their studies to gain other experien	which different people are talking a	art 4 about taking a gap year – the time which some	young people take off from		
TASK ONE		TASK TWO			
For questions 21 – 25 , choose speaker did during their gap year.	from the list (A – H) what each		For questions 26 – 30 , choose from the list $(A - H)$ which benefit of having a gap year each speaker mentions.		
You will hear the recording twice. While you listen, you must complete both tasks.					
A taught a language		A making long-lasting friendships			
B travelled widely		B overcoming financial problems			
C worked in an office	Speaker 1 21	C increased independence	Speaker 1 26		
D did voluntary work	Speaker 2 22	D improved linguistic skills	Speaker 2 27		
E taught a sport	Speaker 3 23	E dealing with disappointment	Speaker 3 28		
F worked in a hotel	Speaker 4 24	F a renewed sense of adventure	Speaker 4 29		
G worked as a tour guide	Speaker 5 25	G a more mature approach to studying	Speaker 5 30		
H went on an organised expeditio	n	H a chance to consider future plans			

LISTENING

Script

Cambridge Certificate of Proficiency in English Listening test.

SAMPLE TEST.

I am going to give you the instructions for this test.

I shall introduce each part of the test and give you time to look at the questions.

At the start of each piece you will hear this sound:

— *** —

You will hear each piece twice.

Remember, while you are listening, write your answers on the question paper. You will have **five** minutes at the end of the test to copy your answers onto the separate answer sheet.

There will now be a pause. Please ask any questions now, because you must not speak during the test.

PAUSE 5 SECONDS

Now open your question paper and look at Part 1.

PAUSE 5 SECONDS

You will hear three different extracts. For Questions 1–6, choose the answer (A, B or C) which fits best according to what you hear. There are two questions for each extract.

Extract One.

PAUSE 15 SECONDS

- *** -

Strolling along a deserted beach, I saw a bottle dusted with sand and found a message curled inside. An exciting moment! But messages in bottles are not new here. The earliest dates back to eighteen sixty when ships used them to keep those on land informed of their progress. None too reliable when your ship is sinking!

But the local museum is launching a project using bottled messages, not just to promote the whereabouts of the islands and attract tourism. Islanders are being invited to include maps and information about the islands themselves. Bottles have been collected from local beaches and are, though not in the traditional sense, being recycled. Primarily and more ambitiously, the project is set to identify tidal movements. Not by science or satellite systems, but by hurling these bottles back into the sea!

The hope is that people will reply to these messages through the more traditional postal system. Islanders will gain pen pals and new visitors, and the final whereabouts of the bottles will enable scientists to track their paths.

And all this from bottles discarded on a beach!

PAUSE 5 SECONDS

- *** --

REPEAT EXTRACT ONE

PAUSE 2 SECONDS

Extract Two.

PAUSE 15 SECONDS

Presenter:

Last year, Tim Fitzgerald exhibited photographs of his family, but in the current exhibition, which he shares with two other visual artists, he focuses solely on landscapes. What's your impression of them?

Critic:

I'm not sure he has what it takes to move beyond his family. Last year's images of his nearest and dearest were very moving, weren't they – there was a wonderful close-up of his sister's face, almost like an abstract. But these landscapes . . . they're not impressive or particularly articulate.

Presenter:

I know he invokes the influence of several famous painters. You didn't find any of that in his landscapes?

Critic:

No. I think he **has** produced a couple of strong images, but there's no sign of them in the current show and I'm at a loss to know why. It's a very random choice. And also, four small photos in a large gallery feel very sparse. You can see it was an attempt to draw you in, but for me it backfired. You need more impact to raise the curtain on the exhibition – it's not as if it's the last room, it's the first, and you move on to other artists' works . . .

PAUSE 5 SECONDS

_ *** _

REPEAT EXTRACT TWO PAUSE 2 SECONDS

Extract Three.

PAUSE 15 SECONDS

_ *** _

One of my own thoughts about this piece is the idea that you're letting yourself go, abandoning yourself. For me, that's certainly what happens to me. When you're really immersed in it, you're no longer self-conscious, you're absolutely the recipient of the sound. For me it's not even as if it conjures up a specific event. At one point, I was playing it all the time – in supermarket queues, walking into work – having that sound in my ears gave me a world and a space that was very different. My family got pretty fed up. Certainly my husband winces at my corny tastes. I don't know if corny's the right word, but a colleague once said to me she would have expected something less banal. I find that rather sad. OK, so it's a piece that obviously works for many other people too, but that doesn't mean to say it should be denigrated, just because you don't have to have great sophistication in music to appreciate it.

_ *** _

PAUSE 5 SECONDS

REPEAT EXTRACT THREE

LISTENING

PAUSE 2 SECONDS

That is the end of Part 1.

Now turn to Part 2.

PAUSE 5 SECONDS

You will hear a nutritionist talking about the production and uses of mastic, a spice that is found in the Mediterranean area. For Questions 7-15, complete the sentences with a word or short phrase.

You now have forty-five seconds in which to look at Part 2.

PAUSE 45 SECONDS

_ *** _

I want to talk to you today about a spice which is not very well known outside its home territory, and that is mastic. Mastic is a resinous substance which comes from a tree of the pistachio nut family and it is one of Europe's oldest spices. In fact, in its heyday it was considered so precious that armies quite literally fought over the islands where it was grown so that their masters would have the right to control its cultivation and sale.

Let's take a look first at how mastic is produced. The mastic tree itself resembles an olive to the untrained eye but is not quite as large. In a process which is rather similar to the collection of rubber, growers cut the bark of the tree so that the tree then has to exude a sticky sap or resin to heal the wound, and this sap is mastic. The sap needs to harden in order to be of any use and strangely this only happens in the Mediterranean area. Efforts have been made in the past to transplant and cultivate the tree in other parts of the world, but so far without success.

The resin is then removed from the tree and, because it's so precious, people even pick up the dirt under the tree and ensure that every last tiny bit of mastic is harvested. The growers try to pick out any grit which might have become embedded in the mastic gum. They just use simple pins to do this; unusually for nowadays, there are no mechanical aids or gadgets to speed up the process. Everything is still done in the traditional, labourintensive way, by hand. If you examine a small piece of mastic it will look like a white crystal, similar to sea salt. Poets have even mentioned mastic in their work, alluding to it rather romantically as 'silver tears', suggesting again how much it's valued.

Having harvested and cleaned the crystals, the growers often take the mastic from their trees, except for a small amount which they keep for their personal use, to a local co-operative, which contacts various commercial buyers and negotiates a decent price for the growers.

Now, what is mastic actually used for? In fact, its use can be traced back thousands of years. Archaeologists have found small lumps of mastic with the imprint of juvenile human teeth, suggesting that the earliest use of mastic was as a chewing gum for young people, something which still occurs today.

Nowadays it's also used as a flavouring in sweet things like biscuits and to great effect in ice cream. Its value here is that it also provides a stickier texture, which means that it takes longer to soften, a useful quality in the hot Mediterranean summers. Mastic can also be used to flavour liquids. For example, in some rural areas, small fires are lit and a few grains of mastic dropped on the hot charcoal. Then pots are inverted on top so the clay

picks up the flavour of the smoke and the mastic. Chilled water is then poured in, and when this is drunk it tastes very subtly of mastic.

Apart from its culinary uses, some mastic is also sold for other purposes. It can be used in shampoo, toothpaste and, indeed, for certain stomach ailments. In fact, it's this area that mastic producers are now looking towards to provide a wider use for their produce, now that natural herbs and spices are being investigated to provide the medical products of the future.

PAUSE 10 SECONDS

Now you will hear Part 2 again.

_ *** _

REPEAT PART 2

PAUSE 5 SECONDS

That is the end of Part 2.

Now turn to Part 3.

PAUSE 5 SECONDS

You will hear a discussion in which two marine biologists, Gina Kelso and Thomas Lundman, talk about an award-winning television film they made about wildlife in Antarctica. For Questions 16-20, choose the answer (A, B, C or D) which fits best according to what you hear.

You now have 1 minute in which to look at Part 3.

PAUSE 60 SECONDS

Int ·

Today, we're talking to marine biologists Gina Kelso and Thomas Lundman, who you will recently have seen in their awardwinning TV series about Antarctica. So, Thomas, what's it like to suddenly become a household name?

_ *** _

Thomas:

Well, we're being interviewed for all sorts of publications and programmes since our television series about the wildlife in Antarctica won a major award. I'm often asked if I've always been interested in marine wildlife, and I find that hard to answer. What about you, Gina?

Gina:

That's an easy one for me, Thomas. I grew up on African shores, where my father worked for an international company. I could swim by the age of four, snorkel at five. I guess I was destined for marine biology because I've always been as happy in the water as on land. I remember a particular evening when I was about eleven. It was dusk and I was snorkelling, and I came across hundreds of stingrays entwined together. It was extraordinary; another world, and that was the moment that decided me. Although I later went to school in the middle of England, I'd lie awake at night dreaming of the ocean. Fortunately, I got into university to do zoology and went on to do research in marine biology.

Thomas:

And, like me, you've been in wildlife filmmaking for how long . . . about eight years now?

LISTENING

Gina:

Yeah, I knew it was what I wanted to do, but instead of following the normal route of joining a TV company as a researcher, I was lucky enough to be chosen to take part in that first wildlife programme we did together. Do you remember?

Thomas:

Yeah, where we made the first ever live broadcast under the sea. The practice run was very funny. I had to dive into a swimming pool and give a running commentary on some plastic plants that had been borrowed from a studio to make it look more realistic. Fortunately, the programme itself was a success and so one thing led to another after that, and we both moved more into the production side.

Gina:

And it was tough making this latest series in Antarctica, wasn't it?

Thomas:

Well, the series is introduced by a well-known naturalist, dressed in a thermal anorak with the hood drawn so tightly that you can only see his nose.

Gina:

And you get an idea of what conditions were like, but he was only the presenter – flown in to do his bit and flown back out again. We spent eight months there filming with a team of cameramen and researchers, living on a specially adapted boat.

Thomas:

I didn't think I'd stand a chance of working on the programme, because I imagined they'd be looking for rugged types and I'm more the quiet academic. So I was quite taken aback when they asked me. We went for the spring and then returned the following spring, because the winter would've been too cold. Even then, on the Antarctic peninsula it can drop to minus fifteen degrees.

Gina:

We were involved mostly with the underwater scenes. It's a lot warmer in the sea, but we still had to wear extra-thick wetsuits and thermal underwear. The thing about living in that remote research community was I missed hanging out with my friends.

Thomas:

But the Antarctic's a place of incredible beauty and even after working sixteen-hour days, there were still moments of peacefulness.

Gina:

But being with the animals for so long, we got to see things the other scientists hadn't. One guy's been studying fur seals for years – knows everything about them – but he's never seen them eat. He was thrilled when we were able to tell him about it. And if we'd had his input at the time, we would have realised the significance of what we'd seen and focused more on it.

Thomas:

Absolutely. And the highlight of the trip was the day we entered a bay carved into huge glaciers to find around forty humpback whales feeding. It was very quiet, and then we heard a soft explosion. It was the noise of the whales' blowholes. What they do is dive down, and as they start to come up again they release air bubbles from their blowholes. Then they swim round each other, trapping the krill they eat in a curtain of bubbles. So it's an extraordinarily effective piece of teamwork that really increases their feeding efficiency. We filmed them for ten days because we wanted a shot of them as they finished eating. We waited and waited and then one day they just suddenly stopped.

Int.:

And that's . . .

PAUSE 10 SECONDS

Now you will hear Part 3 again.

_ *** _

REPEAT PART 3

PAUSE 5 SECONDS

That is the end of Part 3.

Now turn to Part 4.

PAUSE 5 SECONDS

Part 4 consists of two tasks. You will hear five short extracts in which different people are talking about taking a gap year – the time which some young people take off from their studies to gain other experience. Look at Task 1. For Questions 21–25, choose from the list (A–H) what each speaker did during their gap year. Now look at Task 2. For Questions 26–30, choose from the list (A–H) which benefit of having a gap year each speaker mentions. While you listen you must complete both tasks.

You now have forty-five seconds in which to look at Part 4.

PAUSE 45 SECONDS

— *** —

Speaker One

PAUSE 2 SECONDS

I knew I'd be short of money if I didn't work before going to university, so I decided not to jet around the globe, and found a job in the nearest town instead. I had to live in because of early shifts, and only realised on about day two it meant I couldn't keep up my tennis – which was a blow, because I was a very keen player. But I got over it in the end, which just goes to show nothing's that important. Anyway, I was having too much fun with the rest of the staff to fret about it – I wonder if they're all still there? The worst part of the job was when guests complained, which they frequently did!

PAUSE 3 SECONDS

Speaker Two

PAUSE 2 SECONDS

Well, I took a gap year because I thought I hadn't seen enough of the world. I considered doing an overland trek across the Sahara, or helping out somewhere as a volunteer. Then I found a remote village in Kenya where they needed my skills – they're all football-mad there – and a Nairobi businessman agreed to pay me a living wage. I settled in OK, although I never got the hang of the language, and that year gave me some serious thinking time. I realised I didn't want to complete my course back home,

LISTENING

even though I'd already spent quite a lot of money and time on it. It's all good experience anyway.

PAUSE 3 SECONDS

Speaker Three

PAUSE 2 SECONDS

The whole thing was a disaster from start to finish. I'd had a sort of feeling it might turn out badly. We didn't have the right training or equipment, and because there was no office back-up, we couldn't get news forwarded to our families. And the leader – well, I wonder how experienced he really was. He couldn't speak the porters' language at all. You could say our pioneering spirit was crushed by the time we got back to base camp! On the other hand, we did bond as a group, and I see a couple of them regularly and have done ever since that time. So perhaps it wasn't *all* bad.

PAUSE 3 SECONDS

Speaker Four

PAUSE 2 SECONDS

I know some agencies will organise your gap year and sort out, say, working for a charity, but I'd much rather do what I did – just go off on the spur of the moment and see where you end up. It was absolutely brilliant, even though it took all the money I'd saved up for it – the fare and the hotels and eating in restaurants were to blame for that. At least I know I can cope on my own now and that's a new thing for me. Sadly, I haven't managed to keep up with the people I met in all those different cultures – I'm not surprised though – that's life.

PAUSE 3 SECONDS

Speaker Five

PAUSE 2 SECONDS

I was told to stick to the script whether it was in French, German or Spanish. People don't even ask many questions – it got quite boring after a while, because I felt there wasn't any real communication between me and them. And if it's raining, you get wet just hopping on and off the coach. I didn't have high hopes before I started, although it certainly was a good way of earning some much-needed cash, and there were some nice people at head office, but in the end I did wonder if I couldn't have found something a bit more inspiring. How often do people get a year off in their lifetime?

PAUSE 10 SECONDS

Now you will hear Part 4 again.

_ *** -

REPEAT PART 4

PAUSE 5 SECONDS

That is the end of Part 4.

There will now be a pause of five minutes for you to copy your answers onto the separate answer sheet. Be sure to follow the numbering of all the questions. I shall remind you when there is one minute left, so that you are sure to finish in time.

PAUSE 4 MINUTES

You have one more minute left.

PAUSE 1 MINUTE

That is the end of the test. Please stop now. Your supervisor will now collect all the question papers and answer sheets.

— *** —

LISTENING

Sample paper answer key

Q	Part One
1	С
2	В
3	A
4	В
5	A
6	С

Q	Part Two
7	olive
8	harden
9	(simple) pins
10	(silver) tears
11	(local) co-operative OR (local) cooperative OR (local) co-op
12	(a) chewing gum
13	ice(-)cream
14	(clay) pots

15 stomach

Q	Part Three
16	В
17	А
18	В
19	D
20	D

Q	Part Four
21	F
22	E
23	Н
24	В
25	G
26	E
27	Н
28	A
29	С
30	В

Speaking

General description

FORMAT	The Speaking test contains three parts.
TIMING	16 minutes
NO. OF PARTS	3
INTERACTION PATTERN	Two candidates and two examiners. One examiner acts as both interlocutor and assessor and manages the interaction either by asking questions or providing cues for candidates. The other acts as assessor and does not join in the conversation.
TASK TYPES	Short exchanges with the interlocutor and with the other candidate; a collaborative task involving both candidates; a 2-minute individual long turn and follow-up 3-way discussion.
MARKS	Candidates are assessed on their performance throughout.

Structure and tasks

TASK TYPE	A short conversation between the
AND FORMAT	interlocutor and each candidate.
FOCUS	Candidates show ability to use general
	interactional and social language.
TIMING	2 minutes
PART 2	
TASK TYPE	A 2-way conversation between the
AND FORMAT	candidates. The candidates are given
	instructions with written and visual stimuli,
	which are used in a decision-making task.
FOCUS	The focus is on sustaining an interaction,
	exchanging ideas, expressing and justifying
	opinions, agreeing and/or disagreeing,
	suggesting, speculating, evaluating, reaching
	a decision through negotiation, etc.
TIMING	4 minutes
PART 3	
TASK TYPE	An individual long turn by each candidate,
TASK TYPE AND FORMAT	An individual long turn by each candidate, followed by a discussion on topics related
	followed by a discussion on topics related
	followed by a discussion on topics related to the long turns. Each candidate in turn is
	followed by a discussion on topics related to the long turns. Each candidate in turn is given a written question to respond to. The
	followed by a discussion on topics related to the long turns. Each candidate in turn is given a written question to respond to. The interlocutor leads a discussion to explore
	followed by a discussion on topics related to the long turns. Each candidate in turn is given a written question to respond to. The interlocutor leads a discussion to explore further the topics covered in the individual
AND FORMAT	followed by a discussion on topics related to the long turns. Each candidate in turn is given a written question to respond to. The interlocutor leads a discussion to explore further the topics covered in the individual long turns. The focus is on organising a larger unit of
AND FORMAT	followed by a discussion on topics related to the long turns. Each candidate in turn is given a written question to respond to. The interlocutor leads a discussion to explore further the topics covered in the individual long turns.

PART 1

SPEAKING

Part 1 (2 minutes / 3 minutes for groups of three) Interlocutor Good morning / after Interlocutor Good morning / after Good morning / after An please? Thank you. First of all, we'd like Where are you from ([address Candidate B] [address Candidate A] Select a further question. Select a further question. Place to live? Place to live?	minutes for groups of three) Good morning / afternoon / evening. My name is and this is my colleague And your names are? Could I have your mark sheets, please? Thank you. First of all, we'd like to know something about you. Where are you from (<i>Candidate A</i>)? And you (<i>Candidate B</i>)? [<i>address Candidate B</i>] Are you working or studying at the moment? [<i>address Candidate A</i>] And you?
Go Col Die First Sele Sele Sele	<pre>morning / afternoon / evening. My name is and this is my gue And your names are? Could I have your mark sheets, ? you. f all, we'd like to know something about you. are you from (Candidate A)? And you (Candidate B)? s Candidate B] Are you working or studying at the moment? s Candidate A] And you?</pre>
conteat Thank Thank First o Where [<i>addres</i> Select o Pla • Ho	<pre>gue And your names are ? Count mave your mark sneets, ? you. fall, we'd like to know something about you. are you from (Candidate A)? And you (Candidate B)? s Candidate B] Are you working or studying at the moment? s Candidate A] And you?</pre>
Thank First o Where <i>[addres</i> <i>Select u</i> 70	you. you. f all, we'd like to know something about you. are you from (<i>Candidate B</i>)? <i>s Candidate B</i>] Are you working or studying at the moment? <i>s Candidate A</i>] And you?
First o Where [address Select o Pla	you. f all, we'd like to know something about you. are you from (<i>Candidate J</i>)? And you (<i>Candidate B</i>)? <i>s Candidate B</i>] Are you working or studying at the moment? <i>s Candidate A</i>] And you?
Where Where [address Select of pla • Ho	are you from (<i>Candidate A</i>)? And you (<i>Candidate B</i>)? s <i>Candidate B</i>] Are you working or studying at the moment? s <i>Candidate A</i>] And you?
Wnere [addres Select (Pla • Ho	are you from (candidate A)? And you (candidate B)? s Candidate B] Are you working or studying at the moment? s Candidate A] And you?
[addres [addres Select (Pla	s <i>Candidate B</i>] Are you working or studying at the moment? s <i>Candidate A</i>] And you?
[addres Select (Pla	s Candidate A] And you?
Select o • Yo pla	
• • Ра	Select a further question for each candidate:
pla • Ho	You said you're from (candidate's home town/area). Is that an interesting
•	place to live?
	How much free time do you have at the moment?
• Ч	How good are vou at organising vour time?
• M	What would vour dream iob he?
	Do vou have much opportunity to travel?
• 91	How important is the internet to you?
	•
Candidates	
Interlocutor Thank you.	you.

1

PART 2

SPEAKING

TV doo	cument	ary – V	Vorking	g in the	e food in	dustr	у			в			6	
	A										1001	RIAN AND	AND DENKS	
	c								D					
Certificate of Proficiency in English Speaking Test	1 TV documentary – Working in the food industry	you're going to do something together. Here are different situations.	Place Purt 2 booklet, open at Task 1 , in front of the candidates. Select two of the pictures for the candidates to look at*.	First, I'd like you to look at pictures * and * and talk together about how common these situations are in your country.	You have about a minute for this, so don't worry if I interrupt you. (2 minutes for groups of three)		the pictures.	I'd like you to imagine that a television documentary is being produced on working in the food industry. These pictures show some of the issues that are being considered.	Talk together about the different issues related to working in the food industry that these pictures show. Then decide which issue might stimulate most interest.	You have about three minutes to talk about this. (4 minutes for groups of three)		Thank you. (Can I have the booklet, please?) Retrieve Part 2 booklet.		
Certificate of Sp	(approximately 4 minutes / 6 minutes for groups of three)	Now, in this part of the test you're going to do some pictures of people in different situations.	Place Part 2 booklet, open at Task 1 , in front of the can Select two of the pictures for the candidates to look at*	First, I'd like you to look at pictures * and * and common these situations are in your country.	You have about a minute for (2 minutes for groups of three)		Thank you. Now look at all the pictures.	I'd like you to imagine that working in the food industi being considered.	Talk together about the diff that these pictures show. T interest.	You have about three minu				
	or g	1) 1 minute (2 minutes for groups of three)					Candidates © 3 minutes (4 minutes for groups of three)	Interlocutor		

1 Decisions (cont.)	n a question. Here is your card. of Candidate B. Ромом hor (Candidate 8), vou have about tw	reases ter (<i>cumanae A</i>) see you caru. Nemeniner (<i>cumanae b</i>), you have about wo minutes to tail us what you think, and there are some ideas on the card for you to use if you like. All right? [<i>Allow up to 10 seconds before saving, if necessary:</i> Would you like to begin now?]			4:	If you had to depend on only one of the media for information, which would you choose? (Why?)	To what extent do you believe what you read or hear? What kind of decisions need to be made before TV programmes are broadcast to	ie vi	 What do you think? Do you agree? How about you? 		se?) Retrieve Part 3 booklet.				t about 'decisions' in general. <i>both candidates</i> :	Nowadays, there are so many products to choose from that it's impossible to choose. To what extent do you agree?	Who should decide how taxes are spent, government ministers or local people? (Why?)	ult decisions appeal to some people?	scientists will face in the future?	a criminal is punished?	ion?		
	Now (Candidate B), it's your turn to be given a question. Here is your card. Place Part 3 booklet, open at Task 1(b), in front of Candidate B. Plasse lat (Combinue 4) cae vour card. Remember (Combinder 8) vour b	Frease ref contauter <i>sty</i> see your caru. Remember (cumutate by you nat you like. All right? [Allow up to 10 seconds before saying, if necessary: Would you like to begin now?]	na na ann an fuanna a' fuannach i Burfan amba annsan ar ar fa uann	Thank you.	Ask one of the following questions to Candidate A:	 If you had to depend on only one of th choose? (Why?) 	 To what extent do you believe what you read or hear? What kind of decisions need to be made before TV processing. 				Thank you. (Can I have the booklet, please?) Retrieve Part 3 booklet		How much are people's decisions influenced by the media? • spending habits	irs ant	Now, to finish the test, we're going to talk about 'decisions' in general. Address a selection of the following questions to both candidates:	•	•	Why do jobs that involve taking difficult decisions appeal to some people?	 What difficult decisions do you think scientists will face in the future? 	 What is the best way of deciding how a criminal is punished? 	How easy is it to repair a wrong decision?	inank you. Inat is the end of the test.	
	Interlocutor	۵	Candidate B	Interlocutor	Interlocutor					Candidates		Task 1(b)	How much are peop • spending habits	 current affairs entertainment 	Interlocutor	Den to A minutes	cannum + oi qu						
		minutes. comment	d like you ise if you		about two						Bu]]									
Proficiency in English aking Test	1 Decisions	i're each going to talk on your own for about two bartner is speaking because you'll be asked to c	ve you a card with a question written on it and l' re are also some ideas on the card for you to u		(a), in front of Candidate A. ur card. Remember (Candidate A), you have a	n. g. <i>if necessary:</i> Would you like to begin now?]		Candidate B:	think you are a decisive person? - friends, family or strangers? (Why?)	o to for advice? (Why? / Why not?)	Invite Candidate A to join in by selecting one of the following prompts: • What do vou think?		oklet, please?) Retrieve Part 3 booklet.		sking								
Certificate of Proficiency in English Speaking Test	Part 3 (approximately 10 minutes)	Now, in this part of the test you're each going to talk on your own for about two minutes. You need to listen while your partner is speaking because you'll be asked to comment afterwards.	So (<i>Candidate A</i>). I'm going to give you a card with a question written on it and I'd like you to the us what you think. There are also some ideas on the card for you to use if you	like. All right? Here is your card.	Place Part 3 booklet, open at Task I(a), in front of Candidate A. Please let (Candidate B) see your card. Remember (Candidate A), you have about two	minutes to talk before we join in. [Allow up to 10 seconds before saying, if necessary: Would you like to begin now?]		Ask one of the following questions to Candidate B:	 Generally speaking, do you think you are a decisive person? Who gives the best advice - friends, family or strangers? (Why?) 	Are you a good person to go to for advice? (Why? / Why not?)	Invite Conductors A by form the Soliving prompts: one of the Following prompts: • What do vou think?		Thank you. (Can I have the booklet, please 7) Retrieve Part 3 booklet.		Which is preferable, making your own decisions or asking others for advice?		at different ages						

SPEAKING

Examiners and marking

The quality assurance of Speaking Examiners (SEs) is managed by Team Leaders (TLs). TLs ensure all examiners successfully complete examiner training and regular certification of procedure and assessment before they examine. TLs are in turn responsible to a Professional Support Leader (PSL) who is the professional representative of Cambridge ESOL for the Speaking tests in a given country or region.

Annual examiner certification involves attendance at a face-to-face meeting to focus on and discuss assessment and procedure, followed by the marking of sample Speaking tests in an online environment. Examiners must complete standardisation of assessment for all relevant levels each year and are regularly monitored during live testing sessions.

Assessment

Throughout the test candidates are assessed on their own individual performance and not in relation to each other. They are awarded marks, between 0 and 5, for a variety of criteria by two examiners; the assessor and the interlocutor. The assessor awards marks by applying performance descriptors from the Analytical Assessment scales for the following criteria:

Grammatical Resource

This refers to a candidate's ability to maintain control of a wide range of grammatical forms. At *Cambridge English: Proficiency* level candidates can also show a level of flexibility of use.

Lexical Resource

This refers to a candidate's ability to use a range of appropriate vocabulary with flexibility in order to give and exchange views on familiar, unfamiliar and abstract topics.

Discourse Management

This refers to the extent, relevance, coherence and cohesion of a candidate's individual contributions. At *Cambridge English: Proficiency* level, candidates can produce extended and shorter stretches of language, as required by the task, with very little hesitation and using a wide range of cohesive devices and discourse markers. Contributions must be relevant, coherent and varied.

Pronunciation

This refers to the intelligibility of a candidate's speech. First language interference is expected and not penalised if it does not have a negative effect on the listener. At *Cambridge English: Proficiency* level, candidates are expected to have control of phonological features, i.e. intonation, word and sentence stress, and the articulation of individual sounds.

Interactive Communication

This refers to a candidate's ability to use language to achieve meaningful communication through initiating, responding, exchanging information and developing the interaction. At *Cambridge English: Proficiency* level, candidates are expected to interact with ease, linking contributions to those of other speakers, to widen the scope of the interaction and to negotiate towards an outcome.

The interlocutor awards a mark for Global Achievement using the Global Achievement scale. This refers to a candidate's overall effectiveness in dealing with the tasks across the whole Speaking test.

Assessment for the *Cambridge English: Proficiency* Speaking test is based on performance across all parts of the test, and is achieved by applying the relevant descriptors in the assessment scales.



Cambridge English: Proficiency, also known as *Certificate of Proficiency in English (CPE)*, is at Level C2 of the Common European Framework of Reference for Languages (CEFR) published by the Council of Europe.

ē

ē

University of Cambridge ESOL Examinations 1 Hills Road Cambridge CB1 2EU United Kingdom

Tel: +44 1223 553997 Email: ESOLhelpdesk@CambridgeESOL.org

www.CambridgeESOL.org



© UCLES 2011 | EMC/6752a/1Y11

